Porismouth Water Report & Accounts 2011

2.5%LyS5S

o

CONTENTS

03
04
05

16
17
18
20
23
25
26
27
27
28
29
30
42
43

Highhights

Board of Directors

Charman’s Statement

Operatmg and Financial Review

05 OurBusiness

07 Business Strategy

08 Current Development and Performance
13 Corporate Responsibility

14 Risks and Uncertainties
Company Information

Area of Supply

Directors’ Reporl

Corporate Governance

Report on Remuneration

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
Report of the Independent Auditor
Profit and Loss Account

Statement ot Total Recognised Gains and Losses
Balance Sheet

Cash Flow Statement

Notes to the Accounts

Notice of Meeting

Appendix - Key Performance Indicators

QT

05/08/2011
COMPANIES HOUSE

1



Portsmouth Water Report & Accounts 2011

HIGHLIGHTS

During the past year, Portsmouth Water has agamn maintained s
reputation for supplying high quality dninking water, providing excellent
levels of customer service and carrying out is functions in a low cost,
efficient manner

2nd hughest perforrming Company in the Ofwat qualitative survey
Lowest number of complaints in the tndustry

Achieved the leakage target

RoSPA Gold Medal for health and safety

Financial performance impacted by

— 2009 Ofwat price Determination of a negative 4 8% pnce hmit

— Exceptional charge of £1 1m1n respect of an imparrment
provision on Havant Thicket Winter Storage Reservoir Project
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

In the last year Portsmouth Water has continued to be recognised for
excellent customer service and for its record on health and safety A
significant element of management time has, however, been focused
on the Draft Water Resources Management Plan In last year's report
| advised that the Secretary of State at Defra had announced that the
plan should be subject to a pubhc inquiry Following discussions with
Dedra and further revisions to the Plan, the inquiry was cancelled,
but Defra advised that the revised plan was to be subject to a further
public consultation This consultation closed n November 2010 and
after reflecting the representations to the consultation, the revised
draft plan was submitted fo the Secretary of State who 15 currently
considering whether she will approve its publication

A major revision in the Draft Water Resources Management Pian
was the deferral of Havant Thicket Winter Storage Reservowr from its
onginal completion date of 2021 t0 2035 As part of ds regulated
price determination in 2004 the Company was allowed investment
to undertake the preliminary planming and environmental studies for
the construction of the reservoir It was anticpated that a planning
application would be made in 2010 The deferral of the project
means that much of the work undertaken to date, particularly the
environmental elements, will have to be repeated at the later date
The cost of the work undertaken to date 1s held as an asset, but in
these circumstances the Board have decided to make an impairment
provision against the value of that asset and as | indicated in my
Intenm Statement, an excephonal charge has been made in the
financial results for 2011 of £1 1m

in the financial resufts for the year, turnover fell by £1 8m (4 9%)

to £35 5m and operating profit fell by £2 8m to £6 1m This was
principally due 1o the 2009 Pnce Determinabon which included a

real reduction in charges for 2010/11 of 4 8% Operating profit was
further reduced by an increase of £0 9m in the pension service charge
as calculated under FRS17 Operating costs excluding the FRS17
pension charge and depreciation reduced by 1 6%, this despite RPI
at an average of 5% for the year, and shows out-performance against
the level assumed in the Finat Determination by Ofwat Despite the
reduction in profit, cashflow remained strong, with net cashflow from
operations being £0 4m higher at £17 6m

Capital Expenditure 1n the year to 2011 was £9 6m (2010 - £14 6m),
and included £5 Om on mains renewals This reduchion reflects the
reduced Capital Programme for the AMPS penod and that expenditure
in 2010 was above the normal level as the AMP4 programme was
completed

| am pleased to report that Portsmouth Water has continued its
excellent performance i delivening customer service Over the last
year Ofwat have been undertaking a quarterly telephone questionnaire
an a sample of customers who have contacted their water company
in order to establish the quality of the response to that cantact This 1s
part of a new approach to measunng customer service and 15 known
as the Service Incentive Mecharism Part of this approach includes

a qualitative survey of customers regarding the quality of service
recerved and, m results published for 2010/11, Portsmouth Water was
ranked joint second 1n performance out of 22 companies In addition,
the Consumer Council for Water has reported that for 2009/10, the
Company receved only 7 written complamts per 10,000 connections,
compared to an industry average of 64 The level of complaints
recewved was maintained at the same level for 2010/11

Despite the dry weather i March and Apnl this year, the groundwater
aqurfers which provide our water resources received sufficient
recharge in the Autumn and Winter and therefore no restrictions are
anticipated this summer The winter of 2010/11 was regarded as

cne of the coldest for many years, and although the number of burst
pipes increased in December and January, the Company agam met its
leakage target Comphance with drinking water standards remains at a
high level of 99 96%

The health and safety of employees has the highest prionty for the
business and the effort and commutment of everyone at the Company
was rewarded by the award of a Gold Medal from RoSPA This award
IS 11 recognition of achieving five Gold Awards and an industry sector
award in the last five years

Qver the last year, Ofwat have opened 2 debate about the future

of regulation of the industry, how 1t can be improved and on the
possible approaches to Market Reform We support therr efforts

to move towards a nsk based approach to regulation based on
outcomes, rather than a micro management approach which has

led to increasing information requirements and a process that has
become overly complex We do, however, have concerns at Ofwat
proposals to have separate price limits for the retail and wholesale
elements of the business at the next pnice review We believe that this
will considerably increase the burden on small companies without
delivenng any rea! benefits for the customer Market Reform is still
on Ofwat's agenda, but it needs the Government to specify and then
legislate for the direchion 1t wants the industry to take A Water White
Paper 1s expected in the Autumn in which the Government will give its
views on the Cave Report on Market Reform which was published in
2009 and which advocated the careful introduction of competiton into
the industry

The high leve! of performance achieved 15 a testament to the
dedication and commitment of the employees and | would like to
thank everyone for therr efforts A demanding pnce determimation
and the changing regulatory environment will present the Company
with challenges, but we have made a good start, with excellent
customer service performance and strong control of operating costs
I am confident that the management and employees c¢an nse to the
challenges ahead

~Tn ot
)

T M Lazenhy MBE
Chairman
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Our Business

Portsmouth Water provides water to 304,000 homes and businesses in an area covering 868 square kilometres from the River Meon in
Hampshire to the River Arun n West Sussex The Company serves the crties and towns of Portsmouth, Chichester, Fareham, Gosport, Havant
and Bognor Regis On average, each day it supphes approximately 179 milion litres of water through a network of over 3,270 kilometres of
underground mains Water supplied 1s denved from the chalk of the South Downs and 1s abstracted from wells, boreholes, springs and the River
ltchen The table below shows the major sources used by the Company during the year The spnngs at Havant and Bedhampton, which provide
27% of the total supply, are thought to be the largest group of spnngs used for public supplies in Europe

Source Actual 2010711 % of Supply % of Supply
Absiraction 2010/11 2009/10
{Millron Litres)
Spnngs at Havant & Bedhamgpton 18,689 27 26 |
River ltchen 8,335 12 13 1
Boreholes, Wells & Adits ~ o 41,400 61 61 ‘
Totals 68,424 100 100

A map showing the Company's area of supply and the location of its sources and treatment works s shown on page 17

Water from the sprnings at Havant and Bedhampton 1s treated at the Farlington treatment works and there are also complex treatment works at the
River Itchen, Lovedean, Soberton and Fishbourne The last three works accounted for approximately 5% of supplies in 2010/11 Water from the
remaining sources requires less sophisticated treatment

Portsmouth Water’s charges are the lowest in England and Wales, the average annual bill for water being £89 per household, the equivalent of
24p perday In real terms, the price of water for household customers has fallen by 14 9% over the last 14 years This compares with a real
increase of 13% for the industry as a whole, as ilustrated in the chart befow, where the 1996/97 prices are indexed at 100

Comparnison of Average Household Bills with Average Industry Tanfis

15

———— Company Average -—— Industry Average

110

05

1996/97  1997/98 1998/99 1999/00 2000/01 2001/02 2002/03 2003/04 2004/05 2005006 2006/07 2007/08 2008/03 2009/10 2010/11

The water industry 15 subject to a range of UK and EU legislation Standards, particularly those relating to the environment, are being tightened
on a reqular basis and require increasing levels of investment The standards of service provided by Portsmouth Water are monitored by

three main regulators - the Water Services Regulabon Authonty (Ofwat) for setting pnces and to ensure value for customers, the Environment
Agency (EA) for environmental protection and the Dnnking Water Inspectorate (DWI) for dnnking water qualty Custormers are represented by
the Consumer Council for Water (CCW), which monitors the quality of service provided by the Company Portsmouth Water works closely with
these and other organisations interested mn the services it provides

Otwat 1s the water industry’s economic regulator, and ts pnncipal duties are exercised through the pnce-setting process Ofwat sets price mits
for Portsmouth Water every five years The last determination of pnces was in November 2009 for the penod 2010 to 2015 The pnce setting
process 1S known as the Penodic Review and inveolves a senes of consultations between water companies, Ofwat and the other regulators over
a two year penod The review examines all aspects of the busmess and requires the Company to submit a detailed Business Plan to Ofwat
Water companies are allowed to increase pnces to customers annually by inflabon (RPI) plus or minus the pnce imit set by Ofwat The price
limits reflect the revenue, which the regulator believes an efficient company needs n order to finance its operations and caprtal programme, after
making an assessment of potential future efficiency gains
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The pnce hmits set for the five year period to 2015 are as follows

2010/11 2011/42 2012113 2013/14 2014115

% (reduction) In bills before inflaton (48) 21 7 (14) (06)

Long Term Resource Planming

Over the last twenty years, the Company has expenenced falting demand for water, particularly from commercial customers The future,
however, IS expected to see nsing demand from domestic customers, with a significant house buildmg pragramme planned 1n the Company’s
area of supply The Company's strategy for ensunng there are sufficient water supplies to meet the demands of custormers through to 2034/35
15 set out in its Draft Water Resources Management Plan, the latest version being pubhished m Apnl 2011 The plan has been subject to two
public consultations and all feedback has been taken into account and a Statement of Response to the representations received was published
on our websrte In Apnl 2011 The Plan requires the approval of the Secretary of State who 1s now considering it and in due course will adwise us
erther to publish the plan, provide further information or decide that a public examination is required The current Draft Plan has identified the key
elements needed to manage water resources over the next 25 years and these are -

A compulsory meterng programme utilising automatic meter reading technology over a 15 year penod starting (v 2015

A b year programme of leakage savings delivenng a 3 million litres per day leakage reduction starting in 2015

The construction of a Washwater Recovery Plant at Farlington Treatment Works by 2017/18

The development of Havant Thicket Winter Storage Reservorr filled by surplus water from the Havant and 8edhampton Spnngs between 2025
and 2035

A key change fromn the 2004 Water Resources Plan 1s the deferral of the Havant Thicket Winter Storage Reservorr from 2021 to 2035

The Company 15 commutted to sustainable development It must balance the provision of water supply with the needs of the environment and
play a part m ensunng that the UK comphes with European and National environmental legislation

RIGHT

Children at the annual Schools
Science Fair co-sponsored

by the Company

FAR RIGHT

The drought garden at Head
Otfice, July 2010

BELOW

Replacing a borehole headworks cover
at World's End Water Treatment Works




Portsmouth Water Reparl & Accounts 2071

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Business Strateqgy

Mission Statement
‘We aim to supply dnnking water of the mghest quality, providing high fevels of customer service and excellent value for money’

The Company has a well developed, focused strategy which will meet the demands of all its stakeholders The key objectives are

To ensure customers enjoy reliable and secure supplies meeting all water quality standards

To maintain our standards of customer service as one of the highest in the industry

To provide value for money by continuing to focus on operational etficiency

To menimise the impact on the environment to ensure we have a sustainable long term future

To grow the business where appropnate utilising a good resource position to provide bulk supplies and trade water
To aclueve returns consistent with retaining investor confidence

The strategy will be achieved by focusing on five key 1ssues

Having a well developed and frequently updated long term water resources plan, which will meet the needs of the custorer, through secure
water supplies, whilst respecting the environment

Putting customers at the heart of everything we do, and ensunng that they continue to receive excellent value for money

Mamntaining our asset base

Setting goals for efficiency which outperform regulatory targets

Maintaining a motivated workiorce, whilst ensuring that the heafth and safety of employees 1s given the highest prionty

The progress of the Company 1s measured by a number of key performance indicators (KPI) and these are highlighted in the following section of
the Review

Presentation of RoSPA 2011 Gold Medal Award for Occupational Health and Safety to the Company's Managing Director, Mr Nicholas Roadmght
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Children at the Hampshtre Water Festival,
held at Staunton Country Park

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Current Development and Performance

Financial Performance

The results for 2010/11 have been matenally affected by the Pnce Determination by Ofwat
published in November 2009 and the impairment of part of the investment in the Havant
Thicket Winter Storage Reservorr following a revision to the Company's draft Water Resources
Management Plan The Pnce Determinaton included a real reduction of 4 8% in charges for
customers for 2010/11 and this has resulted n a rebalancing of turnover and operating profit
from the levei achieved in 2009/10

Protit before tax

Turnover for the year reduced by 4 9% to £35 5m This reflected the 2009 Pnce Determination
and a reduction in income from mains diversion work of £0 3m and, largely as a result of
these factors, operating profit reduced to £6 1m from £8 9m 1n 2010 as analysed below

2010/14 2009110

£m £m
Turnover 355 373
Operating costs excluding depreciation and the FRS17 pension charge 188 191
Operating profit before depreciation and FRS17 pension charge 167 182
Depreciation {including renewals) o 83 79
FRS17 penston charge 23 14
Total Operating Profit 61 89

Operating costs, excluding depreciation and the FRS17 pension charge fell despite inflation
(RP1) over the penod of 5% This was largely due 1o a fall in business rates following a re
-evaluation in 2009 and a reduction in the amount provided for doubtful debts The current
service cost for the pension scheme increased by £0 9m to £2 3m reflecting the efiect of
falling bond yields on the calculation of the scheme's habilhies

An excephonal charge of £1 1m was made n respect of an impairment loss on the asset value
of Havant Thicket Winter Storage Reservoir At the Final Deterrmination in 2004, the Company
was provided with investment to undertake the prelminary planning and environmental studies
for the construction of a reservorr at Havant Thicket It was anticipated that this work would
allow a planming application for the reservor to be made in 2010 Total expendrture to date on
this project amounts to £1 9m This cost s held on the balance sheet as an asset The current
draft of the Water Resources Management Plan, on which a consuftation was completed

in November 2010 and 1s now with the Secretary of State for considerabon, assumes the
reservorr will not be required untl 2033/34 Work on the reservair is therefore now not
expected 1o be started until 2025 and by that ime a large element of the work undertaken to
date will have to be redone, particularly the environmental studies Under these circumstances
it1s not appropnate to carry the cost of this work as an asset and therefore an element of this
has been impaired and written down

interest receivable at £1 2m (2010 - £1 4m) relates mainly to interest receved from group
companies and I1s based on Libor plus 1% An increase n other finance mcome of €1 2m to
£19m represents an increase In the expected return on Pension Fund assets

interest payable at £7 2m (2010 - £1 9m) includes £3 9m for indexahon of the loan prowided
by Artesian Finance plc {2010 - negative £1 2m) The indexation of the ioan for 2010 was
based on RPI for July 2010 of 4 8%, whereas, RPI for July 2009 was negative 0 4% Interest
on the capital sum amounted to £3 1m {2010 - £2 9m)

As a result of these factors, profit before tax reduced to £0 9m {2010 - £9 Om)

Taxation
The taxation charge at £0 2m was £3 Om lower due to the fall n pre-tax profit and the impact
of the change in Gorporatron Tax rates on the deferred tax habilties

Dividends
The dvidends paid dunng the year amounted to £3 385m (2010 - £4 663m) Dwdends are
paig up to the parent company and largely used to service debt held by the group
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Staff from the Blendworth Centre, who carry out
grounds mamtenance at vanous Company sites
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Current Development ana 2erigrmance

Cashtlow and Balance Sheet
Despite the reduction in Operating Profit net cashflow from operations was £0 4m higher at
£17 6m (2010 - £17 2m) This was the result of the following movements in Working Caprtal

- A payment of £0 5m for mains diverstonary work undertaken for an associate company,
the costs for which were incurred in 2009/10 and included i work mn progress at March
2010 year end

— An advance payment from Southern Water Services of £1 3m in respect of monies falling
due through to 2013 as part of the Bulk Supply Agreement

Net debt (excluding deferred arrangement costs) at £88 3m (2010 - £85 8m) includes an index
hinked loan with a vatue of £85 3m (2010 £81 4m ) The value 1s indexed each year by the
previous July's recorded RPI The increase in debt for the year is a result of this indexation

The level of geanng 1s an important ratio In the Company's loan covenants and 1s measured by
the ratio of net debt to the Gompany's Regulatory Capital Value (RCY) which 15 determined by
Ofwat at the 2009 Price Determination The RCV 15 also indexed by RPI but at the March {year
end) figure The ratio 15 known as the Regutatory Asset Ratio At the year end, the ratic was

76 7%

Accounting Policies
The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies described in note
1 to the accounts on pages 30 to 31 and with UK GAAP

Under 1its licence of appointment, Portsmouth Water Limited, a pnvate company, 1s required

to publish information about its annual results as if t were a company covered by the Listing
Rules of the Financial Services Authonty From Apnl 2005, listed groups are required to prepare
accounts in accordance with Internabional Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) Itis the
Company's view that these standards are not appropnate for a regulated water busmess and

it has been granted exemption, by Ofwat, such that it need only adopt IFRS when non-hsted
companies are required by statute to do so

The Company has changed its policy in respect of capitalisation of fixed assets, in that the
employment costs and related overheads of the Capital Works department are aflocated to the
specific capital projects to which they are atinbutable This 1s in line with the treatment by other
water companies and the change has been made to provide more accurate reporting to Ofwat
as part of Accounting Separation The previous year's results shown in this respect have been
restated to reflect this change

Pensions

The Company accounts for the Brockhampton Pension Scheme in which it 1s the pnncipal
employer, in accordance with FRS17 The latest actuanal valuation carned out for the purposes
of FRS17 showed a surplus after deferred tax of £21 Om (2010 - £9 8m) The actual gam
before deferred tax of £14 9m which s shown in the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and
Losses (STRGL) on page 27 results partly from the statutory change in indexing pensions n
payment from RPI to CPl and partly from the nse in asset values duning the year

In the most recent tnennial actuanal valuation conducted at March 2008, the Scheme had a
surplus of £17 ¥m Until March 2010, the Company had not made contnbutions for 2 number
of years For the year ended 31 March 2011, the Company made contnbutions of £0 7m this
being at a rate of 12 4% of eamings

The Company s currently in discussions with its employees regarding proposals to reduce
the ievel of future benefits in the scheme Under the proposals, new employees will receve a
penston on a defined contnbution basis although for existing employees therr future benefrt will
remain on a defined benefit basis The changes are being proposed to reduce the fong term
cost of providing pensions and to reduce the nsks to the Company associated with defined
benefits pensions

Key Financial Performance Indicators

Geanng (net debi/requlatory capital value) and cash interest cover are recognised as key
indicators for the Company Performance in 2011 against the target ratios 15 shown in the table
below
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Sample being tested for water quality
at the Company's laboratory

A A AN U ’\"ﬂ‘.'\"’“"ﬁ’\ F e
AN s - [l I

|
v LYY (A N

C.rrart Zeveicoment ard Paiformane?

KPI - 11 Target Performance Performance

2010/11 2009/10
Geanng - Debt/RCV? <83% 76 7% 770%
Cash interest cover? >15 167 172

' Each KPI 1s defined in the Appendix on page 43
2 Definitton of terms 15 contained 10 the Appendix on page 43

Customer Service

For a number of years Ofwat have used the Overall Performance Assessment {OPA) to
measure the performance of companies i relation to customer service This 1s being replaced
with a new measure, the Service Incentive Mechanism (SIM) which places greater emphasis
on the quality of service receved rather than the speed of response Part of this 1s a qualitative
assessment survey and the resulis of this are shown below, together with the OPA score for
2008/10 Therefore we show the results of both measures m the table below

KPl -2  Customer Service Measures

Target Performance Performance
201011 2009/10

Number of properties at nsk of Inadequate pressure =120 66 66

Properties affected by unplanned interruptions to supply Nil Nil Nil

>12 hours

Population subject ko hosepipe bans Nil Nil Nil

Billing contacts - answered within 5 days 100% 100% 100%

Written complamnts - answered wittun 10 days** 100% 99 5% 100%

Bills for metered customers - number recewving bill based 100% 100% 100%

on meter reading

Telephone contact - number of calls abandoned <25% 35% 29%
- all ines busy =07% 02% 01%

Overall Performance Assessment <Bth 4th Sth

- position relates to 22 companies

Service Incentive Mechamsm - qualitative survey element <Bth 2nd nj/a

- posttion relates to 22 companies

Number of written complaints per 10,000 connections* <10 7 7

* For 2009/10, the Industry average was 64 complamts per 10,000 conrections
** The Company had 201 wntten complaints, so the 89 5% represents one complamt taking
longer than 10 days

KPi-3 Water Qualty

The Company carmes out an exhaustive programme of testing to ensure that water of the
highest qualrty 1s supphed to customers The table below shows the percentage number
of samples which pass the stnct standards set out in the Water Supply (Water Quality)
Regulations

Water Quality Target Performance Performance
2010 2009
Comphance samples passing standards 9995% 99 96% 99 98%

The water qualty performance indicator relates to the calendar year

Operating Efficiency

For many years Otwat have published a report which mcluded its assessment of the
comparative operating efficiency of all water companies i England and Wales using
econometnc modelling Portsmouth Water has always beert ranked in Band A (mostly the
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Changing a borehole pump at
Lavant Water Treatment Works
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highest or 2nd lighest performirg company) This benefited customers through relatively
fower pnces Ofwat do not intend to publish this assessment i future, however they did use
this relative performance to set efficiency targets for the 5 year peniod to 2015 As a result,
Cfwat set an efficiency target of 0 25% per annurm The table below shows the outcome
agamnst this target

KPl-4 Efficiency

Target Performance
201011
To achieve the Ofwat efficiency target of 0 25% 35%

Camital Investment

Gross capital investment dunng the year was £9 6m (2010 - £14 6m) and tncluded £5 0m
{2010 - £7 Om) on infrastructure renewals After receving capital contnibutions and
infrastructure charges of £0 9m, net capital expendrure was £8 7m (2010 - £14 Om) Capital
expenditure was high in 2009/10 as the Company concluded ts AMP4 programme

Dunng the year the Company renewed 18 29km of mains (2010 - 23 7km) at a cost of £4 6m
with the remaining cost on infrastructure renewals (£0 4m) being the settlement of a claim
from a contractor for work on raw water mams carned out in 2009/10

Gross expenditure on above ground assets at £4 6m included £0 8m for installing domestic
meter options and £0 5m on the implementation of a new hilling system The remainder was
on relatively small projects In the Final Determination the Gompany was given an allowance of
5,000 domestic meter options per year, however in 2010/11 only 3,604 customers chose to
switch to a measured supply At March 2011, meter penetration for the Company was 19% of
househoid customers

Water Resources - Outlook for 2011

As detalled on page 5, 88% of water supplied to customers 1s from groundwater springs,
boreholes and wells which abstract from the underground chalk of the South Downs
Groundwater levels are therefore cntical to maintaiming supplies to customers The Company
has for many years monitored the groundwater fevel at Idsworth Well, Rowlands Castle, which
15 unaffected by abstrachion and is representative of groundwater conditions in the South
Downs chalk

At the end of Apnl 2011, groundwater levels were close to the long term average as outhned on
the graph below, which includes the thirty year long term average

Idsworth Well
40
— 2011112
— 201/11
% - 2009/10
E —— 30 Year Average
[}
S %
2
g
=
s 25
-3
2
a
E
ay
=

I APR | MAY | JUN 1 JUL | AUG | SEP | OCT | NOV | DEC | JAN | FEB | MAR |

Water resources are therefore, despite the dry conditions in March and Apnl, expected to be
sufficient to meet peak demands in the summer of 2011 and a hosepipe ban is not expected in
our area of supply
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Leakage detection work at
Gunwharf Quays, Portsmouth
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Cur-ent Development and Performaics

Leakage

Leakage for the year was recorded at an average of 29 6MI/d The lzakage targets were set out
in the Company’s Business Plan for the last Penodic Review and agreed by Ofwat as part of
the Final Determination in 2009

KPl -5 Leakage

Target Performance 2010711
Average leakage of 29 7Ml/d Average leakage of 29 6Ml/d
Employees

The Company employs 224 people and believes 1t recruts and retams the nght people key to
the successful performance of the business

The Gompany Is firmly committed to the development of its employees and that they should all
have opportunities to reach their full potential and, as a result, a number dunng the year have
undertaken Degrees, HNC’s, NVQ's along with associated professional qualifications

In hne with this objective the Company fully supports the principle of Modern Apprenticeships,
for example, all new employees within the Customer Services department aged under 25 are
employed through the Modern Apprenticeship scheme which leads to a munimum NVQ level 2
qualification with many going on to achieve level 3

A key part of staff development 1s the Company involvement with the Instiute of Water The
lnshiute of Water 1s a professional body whose purpose Is to promote the advancement of
knowledge within the water industry To this end, Area and National Gommittees organise
meetings, seminars, techmcal visits and conferences, as well as a vanety of social events
These activites provide a shop window for the latest technological developments in the
industry and a forum for the discussion of major topics The Company encourages its staff to
belong to the loW and gain the benefit for both their personal and professtonal development by
attending these events

Total absence for 2010/11 (days per employee per year) was 3 9 (2010 - 4 9) This figure
compares favourably with the average for pnvate sector employers, which stands at 7 4
{Source CIPD Absence Survey Report 2010)

Health and Safety

Health and safety of employees 15 considered fundamental to the success of the business and
the Company 1s commutted to achieving high standards across the erganisation The Company
has put health and safety at the top of the agenda ard from the Board down has made it a high
pnonty

Considerable time and resources have continued to be directed into raising the awareness

of Health and Safety and the statistical results for the year 2010 show very positive results
from these efforts, with only one reportable accident {accident causing more than three days'
absence) being recorded

Total Accidents and Reportable Accidents

I 1s pleasing to report that our efforts have again been recogmised externally through the
RoSPA Health and Safety Awards, by the Gompany being awarded the Gold Medal This 1s in
recognition of our Health and Safety record over the fast five years where we have recewved five
Gold awards and an Industry sector award This award 15 again recogniiion of the efforts of all
employees who should feel proud of their achieverrients in making the Company a safer place
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Corporate Responsibility

Water Efficiency

Dunng the year, a Water Efficiency Officer was appointed and a
number of rew inhatives were carned out and planned as part of an
overall water efficiency strategy for the next four years

Imtiatives included a partnershup with the website provider ‘Save
Water Save Money’ who, upon request from a customer provides free
water efficiency packs Customers are able to select from a number of
water efficiency apphances such as a save a flush bag, shower timer,
twin tap inserts, a shower requlator and a number of information
leaflets In addiion, all new metered customers received an enhanced
meter pack which included water saving devices and there were also a
number of media campaigns which included working with Paramount
Pictures utiising the movie Rango, which featured 2 water efficiency
message

Water efficiency also featured n a number of our community activibes
including the Hampshire Water Festival and cur education centre at
Stauntan Country Park

Catchment Management

Portsmouth Water have established ‘The Downs and Harbours Clean
Water Partnership’ with Natural England and the Environment Agency
The partnership's otyective is to protect and smprove drinking water
quality and both nver and coastal water quality

A key issue for the Partnershup 1s to try and ensure that there is no
detenoration in the quality of our drinking water supphes which are
taken from underground aquifers This 1s achieved by advising land
owners and farmers on the best practice for use of fertiisers and
overall land management This will prevent us in the future having
to use expensive treatment processes to remove chemicals such as
nitrate (found in fertiisers) from dnnking water

Work in the commumty
2010/11 has seen the Company continue to play a valuable role in
supporting the local community

This has included continued sponsorship of the popular Portsmouth
in Bloom competrbon run by Portsmeuth City Council and extending
our education partnership with Staunton Country Park for a further 3
years Both these partnerships help us promote sustainable gardening
along with the efficient use of water and allow us to educate future
and current generations on the need to save water

A key community activity dunng 2010 was the Hampshire Water
Festival, held at Staunton Country Park, which saw over 12,000
visitors over a weekend 10 July The Company played a large part

1 the overall success of the event hoth from involvement in the
orgamisation {the management committee}, our work In producing
high quality publicity matenals along with the use of our bills for
promoting the event and our activities over the weekend The festival
became a Company wide event with employees displaying an
excellent commitment to deliver a strong water efficiency message in
an entertaining way for families

As part of our ‘Water for Health’ intiative, which promotes the benefits
to children of dnnking water, we again made available dnnking water
bottles at the subsidised cost of 30p per bottle to every child in &

local pnmary, infant and jumor school This intative remains very
popular with 30,000 bottles delivered last year and which has seen

nearly 260,000 water bottles delivered to local school children over a
number of years

The Company continue to offer community talks to local schools,
colleges, clubs and groups such as Age Concern, Rotary and the
Women's Institute as well as supporting local schools in activities
such as Science Days

WaterAid

The Company continues to support and promote the chanty WaterAwd
to customers ang staff Over the last 30 years donations from our
customers, together with fundraising efforts of our employees have
raised a staggenng £400,000 for WaterAid It 1s estimated the average
cost1s only £15 per person for supplying a safe water supply to a
village, combined with samtation and hygiene education for life

Environmental Performance

The Company recognises its irmpact on the environment and seeks to
carry out its activities in a sustainable manner, which 1s highlighted by
the initratives shown below

Conservation

The Gompany’s total licensed area of supply covers an attractive

part of Southern England between the South Downs and the coastal
areas of Hampshire and West Sussex It includes the histonc cities of
Portsmouth and Chichester, and the popular holiday resorts of Bognor
Regis, Selsey and Hayhng Island The harbours of Portsmouth,
Langstone, Chichester and Pagham have & number of important
environmental designations under the EU Habrtats Directive and are
popular water activity venues

Following the implementation of abstraction hicence reductions at
Havant and Bedhampton Spnngs and several sources in Sussex

1n order to protect habrats, the Company has agreed in principle a
hcence reduction for its Gaters Mill abstraction with the Environment
Agency to preserve the River ltichen

Biodversity Action Plan

The Company's policy is to conserve and enhance the natural
environment of its land and to preserve histonc buildings and
equipment, so far as 1s consistent with the pnmary duty of providing a
sufficient supply of wholesome water at reasonable cost

Sustainable Procurement

tn procunng goods and services, the Company has a policy which
seeks to ensure that its impact on the environment 18 mimmised
This includes the use of low sulphur content diesel fuel, timber
from replanted forests and predominantly recycled matenal for
reinstatement

School children with water bottles, part of the
Company's "Water for Health' inttiative
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Risks and Uncertainties

Risk Management

The Company identifies nsks under six main headings - Operational,
Water Quality, Financial, Environmental, Regulatory and Health

and Safety of Employees Individual risks facing the Company

are identified and recorded in a nsk register For each nsk the
consequences, impact and likelihood of failure are dentified, together
with the management controls in place The reqister also clearly
allocates management responsibility and whether any further actions
are required to control the nsks

The Board reviews the nsk register and the controls established to
mitigate these nsks on an annual basis It also receives regular reports
on operational matters, including a monthly review of water quahty
matters directly with the Water Qualty Manager and a quarterly review
of health and safety matters with the Personnel and Safety Manager
The Directors also receive reports from independent regulatory
todies, which comment on the performance of the core water
business

The Audit Committee meets at least three times a year, monitors the
effectiveness of the systems which are in place and reports to the
Board as a whole

Operational Risk

The key operational nsks facing the Company are the loss of a
treatment works or part of the mains network, which would result in a
failure to supply water to customers To mitigate this nsk, the supply
network has been enhanced over several years to connect different
supply areas, such that m most situations water can be transferred to
compensate for a fallure at a treatment works The Company also has
a fully documented Emergency Plan which 1s initiated im the event of
an incident, impacting erther its ahility to supply water to the public or
resulting in a water quality 1ssue

Water Quality Risk

To ensure water quality standards are maintained, the Company has

a fully documented Drinking Water Safety Plan which identifies the
potential nsks throughout the supply process Water quality 1s also
monitored by a comprehensive sampling regime n accordance with
statutory legistation Furthermore, a telemetry system linked to all
treatment works provides an alarm to our 24 hour Operations Centre if
there 1s a failure of equipment The Company also mantains two days’
storage of treated water in service reservoirs to provide sufficient tme
for any water qualrty Issues at treatment works to be rectriied before
supply to customers In addition, it has membrane filtration at five
treatment works considered most at nsk from cryptospondium being
present in the raw water

Financial Risk

Inferest Rate, Liqudity, Cap:tal and Credit Risk

The major financial nsks faced by the Company are interest rate,
llquidity, capital and credit nsks The Company assesses these nsks
on an ongoing basis and its policies for managing them remain
unchanged from previous penods

The Company’s exposure to interest rate flugtuations 1s now mited
by the fixed interest rate applicable to the index-linked loan drawn

in 2002, with inflation nsks on the cost of the loan being effectively
hedged aganst regulated revenues which are also linked to the RPI
Interest 1s charged at a fixed rate of 3 635% on the indexed amount of
the loan The indexed value of the lpan at 31 March 2011 was £85 3m
(2010 - £81 4m)

The Company seeks to manage financial nsk, to ensure sufficient
hquedity 1s available to meet foreseeable needs through an appropriate
borrowing structure and to invest cash assets safely and profitably
on the short term market In 2010/11 all of the short term cash was
deposited with the Company's Bankers, RBS Short term liquidity 1s
achieved through a £10m working capital faciity and an overdraft
arrangement At the end of the year, £4 5m of this facility had been
drawn (2010 - £6 Om), while the overdraft arrangement remaimned
unutihsed The £10m facility, which terminates in August 2013, was
arranged in August 2010 and replaced a £15m facility that was due
for renewal

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so it can provide
returns for shareholders and benefit {0 customers

The Company’s exposure to credit nsk results from the continuing
impact of bad debt on its ability to collect water revenues It seeks to
minimise this nsk by utilising all available means, including the use of
a dedicated debt recovery section, agencies for collecting outstanding
debt and the following of best practice guidelines

Financial Loss

The nsk of financial loss 15 addressed through comprehensive
insurance cover for a range of nsks, including damage to property,
public and employee hability, fraud ang terronsm A system of internal
controls 15 in place to manage the risks, the details of which are
included in the Statement on Corporate Governance on pages 23

to 25 In early 2007, the Auditors conducted a spectal review of the
Company’s internal control systems The review did not reveal any
significant weaknesses and it has recently been updated to reflect
systemn changes A disaster recovery plan is also in place to enable
the Company to operate (n the event of an in¢ident disrupting its
computer systems At a remote site ten miles from its Head Office, the
Company has an additional mainframe computer, which (s ‘backed up’
every evening, and several workstations for employees to operate

Energy represents over 11% of total operating costs and fluctuating
pnces can have a material impact on profitability To mitigate against
the impact of pnce movements we have fixed the wholesale pnce of
energy untl December 2014 at a pnce considerably lower than we
paid in 2010/11 The fixed price comes Into effect in October 2011

Environmental Risk

The major environmental nsk faced by the Company at the present
time 15 a potential loss of abstraction licence resutting from measures
that may be required by the EA to allow the UK to comply with the
Water Framework Cirective Over the next few years the Company will
be undertaking a study to identrfy the impact of its abstraction at key
points and to identify solutions where required

The fleoding in vanous parts of the UK dunng the summer of 2007
has prompted several natonal reports Whuist the Company was not
attected 2007, it has conducted an assessment of the nsks at each
of s stes and included a small amount of expenditure which was
allowed n the Final Determination: of prices to remedy those sites
where there 15 a nsk of damage as a result of flooding

Regulatory Risk

Regulatory nsk relates to decisions taken by Ofwat at the five yearly
price review and the potential failure to meet the leve! of service and
capital programme agreed with Ofwat for the AMP 5 penod, which
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Risks and Uncer iainties

could result in Ofwat taking action, including financial penaties The
price review 1S conducted in an open ard transparent manner and

the Company actively participates in the process The performance
against the regulatory targets 1s reviewed on a monthly basis by the
Board or the Executwe Directors The annual performance against the
fargets 15 discussed on pages 10 to 11

In the last 18 months, Ofwat have been reviewing their approach to
Regulation and Future Pnce setting in therr Programme "Sustamable
Water' A key objective of this review 15 to reduce the requlatory
burden and we support their efforts 1n thus We also support their
praposals to focus on gverall autcomes rather than cantinue with

the intenswve requirement for Information and increasingly complex
price reviews For future pnce reviews Ofwat are proposing to include
separate price Imits for retail and wholesale elements We are
concerned that this will increase complexity and add to the burden for
smaller companies

Competition 1n the Water Industry

In 2008, the Secretary of State for Defra announced an independent
review of competibon and innovation in water markets The review
was to be led by Professor Martin Cave of Warwick University The
Final Report of this review was published in 2009, which concluded
that the careful introductron of competition would help the Industry to
meet the challenges i faced wn the future

The report proposed that competibion should be introduced intially
in retall for business customers and in water abstraction and then
over ime into upstream activity including treatment A step by

step approach was recommended to examine the benefit at each
stage The report also suggested that to obtain the full benefits

of competiion the whole retall element {household and business
customers} should be separated from the vertically integrated
water company as a separate business, even though only business
customers would be the subject of competition

Ofwat have been extremely active in considenng how competition will
work in the industry and have prepared a number of discussion papers
and has continued to work on its accounting separation project which
seeks to analyse cost into several busingss activities, including retail

The Coalmon government has indicated that it will publish a White
Paper, possibly in the Autumn of 2011, in which it will give 1ts view on
the proposals for competition

Forits part the Company has participated m the discussions on

the issues mvolved in market reform and 1s considering how it will
respond to any changes The Company 1s supportive of wider water
trading and believes this can be actueved by offenng greater incentive
to companies to utilise bulk supplies We also recognise that the
introduction of retall competition for a greater number of business
customers may well yield overall benefits, however it believes that
wider market reform should only be pursued where the net benefit
can be ¢learly demonstrated We are not convinced that this 1s the
case with the legal separation of the Retail Business unit We have
concluded that for small companies the costs will outweigh the
benefits, which in any case we believe are vastly overstated

Health and Safety

The health and satety of employees 1s taken very senously and a
number of inthatives have been introduced over several years 10
reduce the number of accidents and the impact of Inury

These include

— A Heatth and Safety Commuttee compnsing Management and the
Trade Unions

— Ansk assessment prograrmme that has seen over 500
assessments produced

— A system of workplace inspection ensunng that all marned
prermses are inspected at least twice per year

— Specific tramning for those at ugh nsk of injury

- Alimied free physiotherapy service for employees to deal with
Injunes

1WA

N J Roadmght
Managing Director

N Smith
Finance Director

27 May 2011
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COMPANY INFORMATION

Registered Office
PO Box 8

West Street
Havant
Hampshire

P09 1LG

Telephone (23 9249 9888
Facsimile 023 9245 3632
Website www portsmouthwater ¢o uk

Company Number 2536455
Company Secretary Chnstopher Hardyman ACIS

Facts and Figures

Area of Supply

Poputation

Number of Properties Served
Length of Mains

Average Daily Qutput

Auditors

Saffery Champness
Lion House

Red Lion Street
London WC1R 4GB

Bankers

National Westminster Bank plc
PO Box 34

15 Bishopsgate

London EC2P 2AP

Insurance Brokers
Heath Lambert Group
27-31 Fleet Street
Swindon

Wiltshire SN1 1RG

868 km2
660,000
304,000
3,270 km
179MI
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AREA OF SUPPLY

Portsmouth Water has been supplying water to Portsmouth and the surrounding area since 1857 The area supphed by the Company extends
through South East Hampshire and West Sussex from the River Meon in the West to the River Arun in the East encompassing 868 square
kilometres

The Company provides high quality pubhic water supplies to a domestic population of 642,000, as well as many important industnes, targe
defence establishments and vaned commercial businesses
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors have pteasure in presenting their Report and Accounts
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Principal Actvity and Business Review

The Company 1s a water suppher operating under an Instrument of
Appointment granted by the Secretary of State for the Environment
under the Water Industry Act 1991

Water 1s supphed to 660,000 domestic and commercial customers
In an area of 868 square kilometres in Hampshire and West Sussex
through a mains network of 3,270 kilometres

The Company's Area of Supply 1s shown on page 17 of this report

A detailed review of operations for the year 1s provided n the
Charman’s Statement and the Operating and Financial Review on
pages 410 15

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

A detailed review of the Company’s financral nsk management
objectives and the policies employed are set outin the Operating and
Financial Review on page 14 and n note 18 to the accounts on page
37

Financial Results and Dividends

The Company’s profit before taxaton amounts to £0 868m (2010 -
£9 009m} After deducting £0 180m for taxation (2010 - £3 198m), a
profit of £0 688m has been transferred to reserves (2010 - £5 811m)

The Directors are recommending the payment of a final dividend of
£1192m (2010 - £1 885m)

Fixed Assels

Capttat expendrture on tangible fixed assets was £9 552m (2010 -
£14 608m), including £5 014m on infrastructure renewals (2010

- £6966m) Information relatmg to these and other changes in fixed
assets I1s shown In note 10 to the accounts on page 34

The Directors are of the opimion that the current market value of the
land and buildings included in tangible fixed assets 1s in excess of the
value shown in the balance sheet

As they are held for operational purposes, no professional valuation
has been obtained and the excess has not, therefore, been quantified

Board of Directors
The Directors who held office at 31 March 2011, all of whom served
throughout the year, are shown on page 3

MrR L Sullvan and Mr A R Neve who retire by rotation, offer
themselves for re-election MrA R Neve has a one year service
contract with the Company

The interests of the Directors in Group shares are detailed i the
Report on Rernuneration on page 23

The Company maintains appropnate Directors’ ndemmity insurance
Creditor Payment Policy

The Company does not intend to follow any specific code or standard
in relaton to payment practice In the absence of dispute, bills will be

settled in accordance with the suppliers’ terms Where such terms are
considered unreasonable, the Company will seek to agree atternative
payment arrangements to suit both parties At 31 March 2011, the
Company’s creditor days were 16 (2010 - 11)

Substantial Shareholder
At 31 March 2011, Portsmouth Water Holdings Limited owned the
entire voting caprtal of the Company

Regulatory Accounts

A set of accounts for regulatory purposes Is required by the Water
Services Regulation Authonty These accounts relate solely to the
regulated water supply business and copies may be obtained on
request from the Registered Office

Employees
Direct commumication with employees 1s maintaned through |
the Company in-house newsletter In addition, Joint Consultative

Committees meet regularly and ensure effective communicatton with

employee representatives

The Directors consider health and safety to be an important 1ssue
within the Company, with the active participation of employee safety
representatives taking place through the safety committee Dunng
the year, a number of mtiatives were undertaken, which ensured that
health and safety continues to mamntam rts tgh profile throughout the
organisation

The Company has, for the last five years, been awarded the Gold
award in the RoSPA Occupational Health and Safety Awards and was
also awarded an Industry Sector Award in 2009

The Company has adopted a pohcy which complies with the Disability
Dhscnimination Act 1995 Every consideration 1s given to applications
for employment from disabled persons, where the job reguirements
may be adequately covered by a handicapped or disabled person
Employees who become disabled dunng employment are given
centinued employment where possible and opportunities for training
and career development are provided for all disabled employees

The pension scheme to which the Company's employees belong
makes provision for refirement due 1o ill-health or disablement

Environment

The Company 1s most aware of rts obligations to both customers and
the environment In recent years, it has adopted an active approach
to environmental 1ssues and further information 15 set out in the
Operating and Financial Review on pages 5 1o 15

Donations

The Company actively supports the Water industry chanty WaterAid
and, duning the year, customers were invited to make donations to
WaterAid at the time of paying their water bills The Company has also
made donations to a Chantable Trust Fund, which aimed to provide
assistance for customers who have difficulty paying therr bills The
trust is no longer in existence and therefore no donations were made
duning the year {2010 - £25,000)

Licence Requirement
In accordance with its Instrument of Appointment under the |
Water Industry Act 1991, the Directors are of the opimon that the \
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Company 1s i comphance with paragraph 3 1 of Condition ‘K’ of that
Instrument

Audiiors

The Auditors, Saffery Champness, have expressed ther willingness
to continue In office and a resolution providing for their reappointment
will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting

In s0 far as the Directors are aware

— there 1s nc relevant audit information of which the Company's
audtors are unaware, and

— the Directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to
make themselves aware of any relevant audit mformation and to
establish that the auditors are aware of that information

<~

By order of the Board

C Hardyman ACIS
Secretary

Havant

27 May 2011
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors are commitied to high standards of corporate
governance and support the pnaciples set out in the 2008 version
of the UK Corporate Governance Code (the ‘Combined Code’) This
report and the Report on Remuneration descnbe how the Gompany
cormnplies with those principles

COMPLIANCE
The Company has complied throughout the year with the provistons of
the Combined Code, other than as indicated below

As the ultwmate shareholders of the Company have representation at
Board meetings, it 1s not therefore considered necessary to have a
semor independent non-executive Director {code provision A 3 3)

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, the
Managing Director 1s not required to retire by rotation and seek re-
election {cade provision A 7 1)

DIRECTORS

The Board

The Board of Directors retains full and effective control of the
Company and 15 collectively responsible for seting its strategy,
ensunng appropnate resources are in place to meet objectives and
monitonng perfermance

The non-executive Directors play a full part by constructively
chalienging and contnbuting to the development of strategy They are
responsible for determining appropnate levels of remuneration for the
executive Directors and for recommending new appointments to the
Board

The members of the Board and the roles of each Director are shown
on page 3, together with biographical notes The Chairman s Mr T M
Lazenby MBE and the Managing Director is Mr N J Roadright The
Board has not appointed a senior independent non-executive Director

The Board meets monthly and has a schedule of matters specifically
reserved to it for decision It has control of the Company, but
delegates the day to day conduct of business to the executive
Directors and their sentor management colleagues However, there are
a number of matters which must only be decided by the Board as a
whole, including strategy, all confracts over £150,000, dvidend policy
and certain regulatory matters

Committee membership, number of formal meetings held dunng the
year and attendance are shown n the following table

Number of Number of
meetings meehings
held attended
Audit
R J Tennant (Chairman) 3 3
T M Lazenby MBE 3 3
R L Sullvan 3 3
Nomnation
T M Lazenby MBE (Chairman}) 1 1
R L Sullvan 1 1
R J Tennant 1 1
N J Roadmght 1 1
Remuneration
R L Sullivan (Chairman) 1 1
T M Lazenby MBE 1 1
R J Tennant 1 1
Full Board
T M Lazenby MBE (Chairman) 11 1
A R Neve 11 11
N J Roadnight 1 11
N Smith 1 11
R L Sullivan 11 10
R 4 Tennant 1 11

The Chairman talks with and holds meetings on an informal basis with
the other non-executive Directors without the executives present The
non-executive Directors meet without the Chairman present annually
to appraise his performance

There were no circumstances ansing dunng the year where it was
necessary to record unresolved concerns in the Board minutes

Chairman and Managing Director
The roles of Chairman and Managing Director are separate with a clear
dvision of responsibilities between them

The Chairman is responsible for leading the Board and ensunng (ts
effectiveness He facilitates the contnbution of the non-executive
Directors and the relationship between them and the executive
Directors

Board Balance and Independence

The Board compnises a non-executive Chairman, three executive
Directors and two other non-executive Directors The non-executive
Directors bring a wide range of expenence and knowledge to the
Board, which complements the expertise of their executive Director
colleagues They are all considered to be independent of management

The Board considers that its structure achieves an appropnate balance
of authority at the head of the Company, such that no one individual
fhas an unfettered power of decision

Appointments to the Board

The Nomination Committee compnises the Managing Dwrectar, Mr

N J Roadnmight, and the three independent non-executive Directors,
Mr T M Lazenby MBE (Charman), Mr R L Suflivan and Mr R J
Tennant It is responsible for recommending new appointments to the
Board Decisions regarding the appointment of Directors are taken by
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the Board as a whole The Normination Commuttee met once dunng the
year

The terms and condrhions of appomtment of non-executive Directors
are available for mspection

Information and Professional Development

Infermation 1s circulated to the Board in  timely fashton to ensure that
all Directors are fully briefed on all 1ssues ansing at Board meetings
They are free to seek any further information considered necessary

All Directors have access to the services of the Company Secretary
and may take independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense in the furtherance of their duties

Performance Evaluation

Dunng the year, a formal performance evaluation of the Board, its
committees and its Directors was undertaken Each Director was
required to complete a questionnaire, the responses to which were
reviewed by the Board as a whole The non-executive Directors

also met without the executives to consider the performance of the
Board and its committees, and without the Chairman to appraise his
performance The executive Directors are subject to a formal appraisal
of performance which is reviewed by the Chairman The Charrman
also meets with each non-executive Director to review individuat
performance The evaluaton concluded that the Board and s
commitiees operated effectively, and that each Director demaonstrated
commitment to the role and performed eftectively

Re-Election

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Associauion, all
Directors, with the exception of the Managing Director, are required to
retire by rotation and one third of the Board must seek re-election each
year All Directors are subject to eection at the first Annual General
Meeting after their appomntment

REMUNERATION
Policy and practice in relation to Directors’ remuneration is dealt with
in full n the Report on Remuneration on pages 23 and 24

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board believes that the Annual Report and Accounts play an
important part in presenting a clear, balanced and understandabie
assessment of the Company’s position and prospects This 1s
supported by the Ghairman’s Statement, together with a more detailled
analysis of operations and financial matters in the Operating and
Frnancial Review

Internal Control

The Directors are responsible for the Company’s system of internal
control and for reviewing its effectiveness Such a system s designed
to mimimise rather than eliminate the nsk of fallure to achieve
business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against matenal misstatement or loss There has been no
signficant changes in the system of internal control during the year

The Board 1s of the view that there 1s an ongoing process for
identifying, evaluating and managing the Company’s significant nsks,
that it has been in place for the year ended 31 March 2011 and up

1o the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts, that it 1s

regularly reviewed by the Directors and that it accords with the internal
control gurdance for Directors in the Combined Code on Corporate
Governance

The key procedures, which have been estabhished with a view to
providing effective internal control, are as follows

Orgarusation

The Company’s activities are operated through a Board of Directors
with clearly defined reporting lines and delegation of authority The
Dwectars meet at least monthly to ¢onsider a schedule of matters
required to be brought to them for decision A standing sub-committee
of the Board meets fortnightly for the purpose of ensunng that full and
effective control 1s maintained over appropriate financial, regulatory
and operational 1ssues

Budgetary Control

Each year the Directors approve an annual plan produced from a
comprehensive budgeting system Actual results are reported against
the approved plan on a monthly basis to provide a timely and regular
monitonng of performance

Investment Apprarsal

The Company has a clearly defined framework for assessing capital
expendrture needs and options, while post project appraisal looks

at relevant improvemnent n the internal control procedures Board
approval 1s required for any project exceeding a quantifted expenditure
level

Business, Operational and Comphance Risks

The Company assesses the nsks facing its business on an ongomng
basis and has identfied them under six main headings - operational,
water quality, financ:al, environmental, regulatory and heatth and
safety of employees They are subject to regular reporting to the
Directors The Board reviews the controls established to mitigate these
nsks and s insurance requirement on an annual basis The Directors
also recewve reports from independent regulatory bodies, which
comment on the performance of the core water busness

Atthe Apnl 2011 Board meeting, the Directors carned out thewr annual
assessment for the year to 31 March 2011, includmg consideration of
events since the year end

Audit Committee and Auditors

The Audit Committee compnses the three non-executive Directors
Mr R J Tennant (Chairman), Mr T M Lazenby MBE andMr R L
Suflivan

[t meets at least three times dunng the year The purpose of the
Committee 15 to ensure the preservation of good financial prachces
throughout the Company, to monitor that controls are in force to
ensure the integrty of those practices, to review the intenm and
annual financial statements and to provide, by way of timely meetings,
a line of communication between the Board and the external audrtors

The Commitiee has formal Terms of Reference, which deal with

its authorties and duties It has pnmary responsibility for making a
recommendation on the appointment, reappointment and removal

of the external auditors It also reviews annually arrangements by
which staff of the Company may, i confidence, raise concerns about
possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting or other matters
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The Committee reviews the independence and objectivity of the
external auditors This includes reviewing the nature and extent of
non-audit services supphed by the external auditers to the GCompany,
seeking to balance objectvity and value for money The only non-audt
services provided dunng the year were those expected to be provided
by the external audrors

The Committee does not consider that an internal audit function 1s
required for the Company due to the size and nature of the business
This recommendation 1S reviewed annually

GOING CONCERN

The Operating and Financial Review on pages 5 to 15 along with note
18 to the accounts sets out the Company’s financial position, cash
flows, lquidity position, borrowing faciliies, objectives, policies and
processes for managing capital, financial nsk management objectives,
exposures to credit and hquidity nsk

As highlighted on page 14 the Company meets its day-to-day working
capital requirements through a £10m working capial facility that was
arranged in August 2010, and terminates in August 2013

The Company’s financial projections, taking nto account expected
changes in trading performance show that the Company 1s forecast to
operate within the level of its current facility

Therefore the Directors report that, following the above review, they
have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate
resources to continue n operatton for the foreseeable future
Accordingly they continue to adopt the going concern basss of
accounting in preparing the accounts
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REPORT ON REMUNERATION

This report has been prepared in accordance with the requirertents of the Companies Act 2006 and the Listing Rules of the Ainanciai Services
Authonty

INFORMATION NOT SUBJECT TO AUDIT

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee met ance dunng the year to consider and approve, on behalf of the Board, the condstions of service of
the executive Directors of the Company It compnses the three independent non-executive Directors, Mr R L Sullvan (Chairman of the
Remuneration Commuttee), Mr T M Lazenby MBE and Mr B J Tennant

The Level and Make-up of Remuneration

The objective 1s to attract, retan and motivate high calibre senior executives through pay arrangements which are competitve and fair and
reasonable for the responsibilbes mvolved ' addion to individual performance, reference 1s made to pay levels in companies of simitar size
and within the same industry

The remunerahan package of the executive Directors, as reported m the accounts, ncludes a performance related element The salary of the
executive Directors includes a performance related element, which is based upon the achwevernent of agreed financial, customer service and
personal targets for the whole of the previous year

The executive Directors have one year service contracts with the Company, which are in accordance with the 2008 version of the UK Corporate
Governance Code (the ‘Combined Code’) None of the executive Directors serves as a non-executive Director for another company The non-
executive Directors do not have service contracts

The service coniracts of the executive Directors include notice penods of one year, both by the Company and by the Director There are no
provisions for terrmination payments, other than payments for the penod of notice

Fees payable to the non-executive Directors are determined by the Board as a whole and reflect the time, commitment and responsibiiities of the
role

No Director 15 involved in deciding his own remuneration

INFORMATION SUBJECT TO AUDIT

Directors’ remuneration 2011 2010
£000 £000
Total remuneration 485 531
Highest pard Director 166 162
Remuneration 1s analysed by Director below Total Total
Salary/Fees Benefits 2011 2010
£000 £000 £000 £000
Execulive

J E Cogley - - - 52
A R Neve 104 14 118 117
N J Roadnight 147 19 166 162
N Smuth 111 15 126 129

Non-executive
T M Lazenby MBE (Chawman) 33 - 33 K
R L Sullvan 21 - 21 20
R J Tennant 21 - 21 20
437 48 485 531

In the comparative year 2010 Mr N South and Mr A R Neve receved bonus payments of £6,000 and £3,000 respectively This is included in
salary/iees above

Fees paid in respect of Mr T M Lazenby MBE are pad to Searnab Gonsultancy Limited

Benefits compnse company cars and medicat insurance

MrJ E Cogley left service on the 31 August 2009

Long-term incentive schemes
The Company does not operate any long-term performance linked benus scheme
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Share options

The Cornpany does not operate an Executive Share Qption Scheme

The Directors’ beneficial holdings of shares m South Downs Capital Limited, the ultmate parent undertaking, are detatled below and, In total,
represent 15% of the 1ssued share capital of that Company They have no interests i the shares of Portsmouth Water Limited

‘C* Ordinary Shares
A R Neve 30
N J Roadnight 55
N Smith 45

MrJ E Cogley left service on the 31 August 2009 but continues to have a beneficial holdmg of 20 shares in South Downs Capital Limited
Penstons

The Company participates tn the Brockhampton Pension Scheme to provide defined benefits based pnmanly on final pensionable pay for its
employees, ncluding the executive Directors The maximum pension payable under this Scheme 1s 2/3 ot final pensionable pay

Benefits in kind relating to company cars are considered to be part of pensionable pay for all employees under the Scheme

The executive Directors have accrued pension benefits under the Brockhampton Pension Seherne, which 1s a defined benefits scheme, dunng
the year as detailed below

Increase in Accumulated Accumulated

Accrued Pension Transfer Accrued Accrued

Duning Year to Value of Pension at Pension at

31 March 2011 Increase 31 March 2011 31 March 2010

£000 £000 £000 £000

J E Cogley’ - - - 69
A R Neve 1 14 77 74
N J Roadnight 2 42 103 97
N Smith 1 3 64 61

The accumulated accrued pension is the leaving service benefit to which the Director would be entitled to If he were to leave service at the end
of the year It includes any benefits earned as an employee pnor to becorming a Director, as well as those earned for qualifying services after
becoming a Director

The ncrease (n accrued pension excludes any increase for inflation, as measured by the Consumer Pnce Index

The transfer value has been calculated on the basis of actuanal advice in accordance with the basis adopted by the Trustees of the Scheme

for calculating cash equivalent fransfer values (which i1s consistent with Actuanal Guidance Note GN11 as n force on 30 September 2008),
except that the assumption for pension increases 1n deferment and payment has been adjusted to reflect the recent change in statutory pension
increases from Retail Prices Index to Consumer Prices index The transfer value of the increase 1s then reduced by the amount of each
member’s contnbution paid dunng the year

'MrJ E Cogley left service on the 31 August 2009 and therefore his leaving service benefit 1s his entitled benefit using his actual date of
leaving

hen Cah_b
By order of the Board

T M Lazenby MBE
Chairman

Havant

27 May 2011
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annuat Report and
the finan¢ial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations

Company taw requires the Directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year Under that law the Directors have elected to
prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law) Under company law the Directors must
not approve the financia! statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affars of the Company and

the profit and loss of the Company for that penod In prepanng those
financial statements, the Directors are required to

- select surtable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently,

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
— state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed,
subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the

financial staterments, and

— prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless
it 15 nappropnate to presume that the Company will continie 1n
busmess

The Directors are responsible for

- keeping proper accounting records, which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any hme the financial position of the
Company and which enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006,
- safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregulanties, and
- under applicable law and regulations, including the Disclosure
and Transparency Rules, the Directors are also responsible for
prepanng a Directors’ Report, Directors’ Remuneration Report
and Corporate Governance Statement that comply with the
requirements of that law and those requiations tn relation to the
latter, the Directors represent that, to the best of therr knowledge
and belef
— the financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets,
hiateities, financial position and financial result for the year
ended 31 March 2011, and

— the Directors’ Report and information referenced therein,
taken together, includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the
Company, together with a descniption of the pnncipal nsks and
uncertaimties that they face

The Directors are responstble for the maintenance and integrty of
the corporate and financial nformation included on the Company's
website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemmation of financial statements may drffer from legislation
in other junsdictions

.

By order of the Boa

C Hardyman ACIS
Secretary

Havant

27 May 2011
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AUDIT REPORT

Independent Auditors’ report to the members of Portsmouth Water Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Portsmouth Water Limrted
for the year ended 31 March 2011, which compnise the profit and

loss account, the statement of total recogmsed gams and losses, the
balance sheet, the cash flow statement and the related notes The
financial reporting framework that has been applied 1n their preparation
15 apphicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (Unrted
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 15 made s0lely to the Company's members, as a body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compantes Act 2006
Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them
in an Auditors’ Report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opimions we have
formed

Respective Responsibthities of Directors and Auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities,
the Durectors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view

Our responsibility 15 to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements, and the part of the Report on Remuneration 1o be audited,
in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the tinancial statements sufficient to give reascnable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the
company’s circumnstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of sigmificant accounting
estmates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of

the financial statements In addrion, we read all of the financial and
nen-financial nformation 1n the Annual Report to identfy matenal
nconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become
aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we
consider the imphcations for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements

— give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at
31 March 2011 and its profit for the year then ended, and

— have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion

- the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has
been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
2006, and

— the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year

for which the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with
the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are requered to report to you i, in
our opinion

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not
visited by us, or

— the financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns, or

— certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specriied by law are
not made, or

— we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit

Nicholas Kelsey
Sentor Statutory Audstor

For and on behalf of

Saftery Champness
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditors

Lion House

Red Lion Street
London

WC1R 4GB

27 May 2011
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
For the year ended 31 March 2011

Notes 2011 2010
£000 £000
(restated)
Turnaver 2 35,515 37,342
Cost of sales (19,708} {19,493)
Gross profit 15,807 17,849
Net operating expenses 3 (9,699) (8.993)
Operating profit 6,108 8,856
(Loss) on sale of fixed assets (8) (22)
Profit on ordinary activiies befare exceptional item 6,100 8,834
Exceptional item 10 (1,086) -
Profit on ordinary activities before interest 5,014 8,834
interest recevable 5 1,178 1,405
Other finance Income 28 1,897 714
8,089 10,953
Interest payable and similar charges 6 {7,221) {(1,944)
Profit an ordinary activities before taxation 7 868 9,009
Taxation on profit on ordinary activibes 8 (180) (3.188)
Profit for the financial year 20 688 5811
The profit and loss account has been prepared on the basis that all operations are continuing operations
STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES
For the year ended 31 March 2011
Notes 2011 2010
£000 £000
(restated)
Profit for the financial year 688 5,811
Actuanal gain/{loss) on pension scheme 28 14,904 (2.636)
Deferred tax refating to actuanal (gamn)/loss on pensian scheme 17 {4,024) 738
Effect of change to corporation tax rate on pension asset {226) -
Total recognised gains and losses relating to the year 11,342 3,813
Prior year adjustment 389 -
Total gains and losses recogmsed since last inancial statements 11,731 3,813

The pnor year adjustment results from a change in accounting pohicy in respect of the caprtahsation of fixed assets, as detailed in note i to the

accounts

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these accounts
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BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 March 2011

Note 2011 2011 2010 2010
£000 £000 £000 £000
{restated) (restated)
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 10 95,876 96,574
Investments 11 59,468 155,344 59,468 156,042
Current assets
Stocks 520 553
Debtors 12 4,698 4,935
Investments 13 4 4
Cash at bank and in hand 14 1,746 1,931
6,968 7,423
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 15 (17,243) (20,702}
Net current habsliies {10,275) (13.279)
Total assets less current habihties 145,069 142,763
Creditors amounts faling due after more than one year 16 {85,070) (80,136)
Provisions for llabilifies 17 {10,419) (10,272)
Net assets excluding pension asset 49,580 52,355
Pension asset 28 20,969 9,774
Net assets including pension asset 70,549 62,129
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 19 1,078 1,078
Share premium account 20 1,539 1,539
Capital redemption reserve 20 3,250 3,250
Profit and loss account 20 64,682 56,262
Shareholders’ funds 21 70,549 62,129

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these accounts

The accounts were authonsed for 1ssue and approved by the Board on 27 May 2011, and signed on 1ts behalf by,

o ey

T M Lazenby MBE
Chairman

Company Number 2536455
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2011
Notes 2011 2011 2010 2010
£000 £000 £000 £000
(restated) {restated)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 22 17,556 17,153
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest receved 1,177 ) 1,420
Interest paid (3,283) (2,106) (3,071) (1,661)
Taxatton
UK corporation tax paid (858) {965)
Payments for group relief (164) (1,022) {(797) (1,762}
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (10,626} (13,479)
Sale of tangible fixed assets 2 12
Capital contributions received 817 (9,728) 552 {12,915)
Equity dividends paid (3,385) (4,663)
Cash mflow/{outflow) before management
of hquid resources and financing 1,315 (3,838)
Management of hquid resources
(Purchase) of short term deposiis (79) (55)
Financing
(Repayment of)/new loans (1,500) 2,000
Loan repayments from Group company - (1,500) 1,165 3,165
{Decrease) n cash in the year 23 (260) (728)

The accompanying notes form an integral par{ of these accounts




Portsmouth Water Reporl & Accounts 2011 30

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1 Accounting Policres

The accounts have been prepared under the histonca! cost convention and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(Umited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, except for the treatment of
capital contnbutions as detailed in note 1 (c)

In view of the hicence conditions under which the Company operates as a water supplier, it has to publish information about its annual results
as If 1t were a company covered by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, except where it 15 considered mappropnate to do so
Earnings per share disclosures required by FRS 22 are not presented as the Company 1s a wholly owned subsidiary

The principal accounting policies, which have been applied consistently, are as follows
(a) Turnover

Turnover, which excludes value added tax, represents the income receivable for goods and services provided to external customers in the
ordinary course of busingss It compnses the value of water supplied and other related charges Turnover from the regulated water business
includes amounts billed for the year, together with an estimation of amounts unbilled at the year end, for measured water ¢ustomers
Unmeasured mcome bills are based on the rateable value of properties Measured income anses from customers who have meters fitted at their
prermses and amounts billed, therefore, are based cn actual water consumption The estimation of the amounts unbilled at the year end uses a
defined methodology based upon a measure of unbilled water consurmed, which 1s calculated from histoneal customer data

{b) Fixed assets

(1} Infrastructure assets - mains

Infrastructure assets compnse a network of systems Expenditure on infrastructure assets relating to increases in capacity or enhancement of
the network and on maintaining the operating capatihity of the network in accordance with defined standards of service 1s treated as an addition
and included in tangible fixed assets at cost The cost of infrastructure assets is their purchase cost together with Incidental expenses of
acquisition and directly attnbutable labour costs which are incremental to the Company

The depreciation charge on infrastructure assets s the estimated leve! of annual expenditure required to maintain the operating capability of the
network, based on an independently certified asset management plan

(ir) Other assets

Other assets compnse buddings and reservoirs, pumping plant, vehicles, mobile plant and office equipment The cost of other assets Is their
purchase cost together with incidental expenses of acquisition and directly attributable labour costs which are incremental to the Company
Depreciabon 1s provided on all other fixed assets with the exception of freehold land It 1s calculated to write off the cost of assets less estmated
residual values over their estmated useful economic lives using the straight ine method Those lives are estimated as follows

Buildings and Reservoirs 100 years
Pumping Piant 15-25 years
Vehicles and Mobile Plant 5-7 years
Oftice Equipment 7 years

(c) Caprial contnibutions

(1) Mains contributions

In certain circumstances turd parties make non-returnable contnbubions towards the cost of specific infrastructure assets They are treated as
capital contnbutions and the Directors consider it appropnate that, in order to present a true and fair view, they should be deducted from foced
assets, as shown in note 10 to the accounts on page 34 In accordance with the Companies Act 2006 requirement to mclude frxed assets at
cost, such contnbutions would normally be treated as deferred income and released to the profit and loss account over the usetul Iife of the
corresponding assets However, the assets to which they relate do not have deterrminable finite lives and, accordingly, no basis exists on which
to recogmise those contnbuhons as deferred income

(1) Infrastructure charges

Infrastructure charges are made In respect of new connections in accordance with Condrion 'C’ of the Instrument of Appointment These
charges are treated as capital contributions and deducted from fixed assets, as more fully explained in note 1 {c){1) above

(d) Investments

Investments are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value
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(e) Stocks

Stocks of raw matenals are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value 'n accordance with established practice in the water industry, no
value 15 placed upon the water in reservoirs, mains or in the course of treatment

(f) Deferred taxation

Deferred tax 15 recognised on all timing differences where the transactions or events that give the Company an obligatton to pay more tax in the
future, or the nght to pay less tax in the future, have occurred by the balance sheet date Deferred tax assets are recognised when it1s more
likely than not that they will be recovered Deferred tax 1s measured using rates of tax that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date

The deferred tax balances have been discounted using a post-tax yield to matunity that could be obtained at the balance sheet date on
government bonds with matunty dates simifar to when the fiming differences are expected to reverse

{4) Leases

All leases are regarded as operating leases Operafing lease payments are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight line basis over the
period of the lease

{h) Pension costs and other post retirement benefils

Portsmouth Water Limited 1s the princtpal employer and ts parent company, Brockhampton Holdings Limited, 1s the participating employer in the
Brockhampton Pension Scheme This scheme 1s a defined benefit scheme The assets of the scheme are held mn a separate trustee administered
fund

The current service costs are charged to the profit and loss account and included as staff employment costs The interest cost and expected
return on assets are shown as a net amount within other finance income Actuanal gains and losses are recogmsed immediately i the
Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses

Penston scheme habidities are measured on an actuanal basis using the projected unit method and are discounted to their present value using the
AA corporate bond rate Pension scheme assets are valued at rarket value at the balance sheet date The pension scheme surplus 1s recognised
in full on the balance sheet

The deferred tax relating to a defined benefit asset 1s offset against the defined benefit asset and not included with other deferred tax habilities
Detailed information regarding the surplus and actuanal position of the scheme s given in note 28 to the accounts on pages 40 and 41

(1) Financial instruments

When a financial asset or hability 1s recogmised smibalty 1t 1s measured at its fair value plus or minus transaction costs The Company
subsequently categonses financial instruments as follows

Frxed asset investments consist of loans to Group undertakings, which earn interest based on London Interbank rates and are classified as loans
and recevables They are measured at amortised cost Other financial assets consist of short term bank deposits and debtors and are classified
as loans and recevables They are measured at amortised cost

The Company’s financial habilibes consist of fxed rate borrowings 11 the forrm of perpetual debentures and an index linked loan These
mnstruments are classified as other liabilihes and are measured at amortised cost

Change in accounting policy

The Company has changed its policy in respect of the capitalisation of fixed assets, in that the employment costs and related departmental
overhead of the capital works department are allocated to the specific capital projects to which they are attnbitable

The effect of this change 0 accounting policy was to

{0 Decrease cost of sales by £0 462m (2010 - £0 544m)

(n}y Increase profits after taxation by £0 329m (2010 - £0 389m)

(n} Increase fixed assets by £0 462m (2010 - £0 544m)

(v) Increase taxation creditor by £0 133m (2010 - £0 155m)

(v) Increase profit and loss account reserve by £0 329m (2010 - £0 389m)
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2 Turnover 2011 2010
£000 £000
Unmeasured supphes 21,295 22,61
Measured supplies 12,542 12,740
Bulk supply to Southern Water Services 561 518
Chargeable work 1,117 1,413
35,515 37,342

Turnover 1s wholly attnbutable to water supply and related activities tn the United Kingdom
3 Net operating expenses 2011 2010
£000 £000
Administrative expenses 9,980 9,233
Other operating income {281) (240)
9,699 §,993

4 Directors and employees

201 2010
Employment costs £000 £000
(restated)
Wages and salanes 6,069 6,116
Soctal secunty costs 478 478
Other pension costs {note 28) 2,345 1,419
8,892 8,013
Transferred to capital schemes (481) (594)
Net employment costs charged to the profit and loss account 8,411 7,419
2011 2010
Average numbers employed during year Number Number
Operations 144 148
Administration 80 78
224 226
2011 2010
Directors’ remuneration £000 £000
Total remungeration 485 531
Highest paid Director 166 162

Further detalls relating to Directors’ remuneration are set out in the Report on Remuneration on pages 23 and 24 The information set out in that

Report which 1s subject to audit forms part of these financial statements

5 Interest receivable 2011 2010
£000 £000

Loan to Group company 1,161 1,381
Interest on short term deposits 12 16
Repayment interest 3 -
Other interest recervable 2 8
1,178 1,405

6 Interest payable and similar charges 2011 2010
£000 £000

£66 5m loan - interest 3,062 2,937
- indexation 3,890 (1,184)

- amortisation of fees 57 57

- administration expenses 25 25

1,034 1,835

Other bank loans and overdraft 170 94
Debenture stocks 10 10
Other interest payable 7 5
7221 1,944
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7 Profit an ardinary activities before taxation 2011 2010
£000 £000
(restated)
Profit on ordinary actwvities is after charging
Depreciation - Infrastructure assets 4,747 4,561
- non infrastructure assets 351 3,339
Rales 2338 2,475
Water abstraction charges 1,953 1,804
Auditors’ remuneration
Audit services - statutory audit k| 29
Non-audit services - regulatory reporting 23 23
- taxation 3 3
- generat advice 4 5
Fees in respect of the Brockhampton Pension Scheme
- statutory audt* 2 2
Hire of plant and machinery 8 10
Other operating leases 340 340

* These fees are not paid by Portsmouth Water Limited

8 Taxation 2011 2010
£000 £000
(restated)

Current tax i
United Kingdom corporation tax at 28% (2010 - 28%) ) 334 2,257
Adjustment in respect of pror penods (5) {3)
329 2,254

Deferred tax

Ongination and reversal of immng differences 486 o 1,192
Decrease/(increase) In discount 28 (51)
Ejfect of change fo corporabion tax rate (367) -
[hiference between pension cost charge and pension cost rehef 66 (187
Effect of change to corporation tax rate on pension asset (362) -
(149) 944
Tax on profit on ordinary activilies 180 3,198

The tax charge for the year 1s higher {2010 - lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax n the UK of 28% (2010 - 28%) The difterence s
explaned as follows

2011 2010
£000 £000
) (restated)
Profit on ordinary activities before tax . 868 8,009
Profit on ordinary activibes multiphed by standard rate of corporation tax m the UK of 28% (2010 - 28%) 243 2,523
Effect of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes _ ) 316 19
Gaputal allowances for the penod In excess of deprematlon {343) (606)
Revenus tems charged to captal 186 124
Difference between pension cost charge and pension cost relief {68) 197
Adjustments to tax charge i respect of pnor pgnods {5) {3)
Current tax charge for year 329 2,254
9 Dividends 2011 2010
£000 £000
Equity Ordinary/A Ordmary )
Iritenim paid . 1,037 2,050
Final paid 1,885 2,613
2922 4,663

The Directors are proposing the payment of a final dividend of £1 192m for the year ended 31 March 2011 This dwvidend has not been
accounted for within the current year financial statements, as it has yet to be approved
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10 Tangible fixed assels

Freehold land,

Vehicles, mobile

buildings Pumping plant & office
& reservoirs Mains plant equipment Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
At 1 Apri 2010 45,550 117,862 35,705 12,729 211,846
Prior year adjustment - capital works department 72 260 222 - 554
At 1 Apnt 2010 restated 45,622 118,122 35,927 12,729 212,400
Addrtions (49) 6,388 1,452 1,761 9,552
Disposals {(18) (288) (169) (221) (696)
At 31 March 2011 45,555 124,222 37,210 14,269 221,256
Deprectation
At 1 Apnl 2010 7,646 67,310 13,309 8,221 96,486
Pnor year adjustment - capital works department 1 - 9 - 10
At 1 Apnl 2010 restated 7,647 67,310 13,318 8,221 96,496
Charge for year 460 4,747 1,804 1,247 8,258
Impairment loss 1,086 - - - 1,086
Disposals duning year (1) (288) (167) 211) (667)
At 31 March 2011 9,192 71,769 14,955 9,257 105,173
Net book value
At 31 March 2011 36,363 52,453 22,255 5,012 116,083
At 31 March 2010 (restated) 37,975 50,812 22,609 4,508 115,904
Capital contnbutions
At1 Apnt 2010 - 19,330 - 19,330
Recewed dunng year - 877 - 877
At 31 March 2011 - 20,207 - 20,207
Net book value after deducting capital contnbutions i ]
At 31 March 2011 36,363 32,246 22,255 5,012 95,876
At 31 March 2010 (restated) 37,975 31,482 22,609 4,508 96,574

Included within freehold land, bulldings and reservorrs at cost was an amount of £1 897m relating to a capital project involving the design and
construction of a winter storage reservoir at Havant Thicket Costs incurred to date were in respect of inthal design, planning application and
environmental impact studies This project 1s not now expected to be started untl 2025 and therefore it was considered appropnate to make
an tmpairment provision in respect of those elements of the project which will have to be redone in the future The mmpairment ioss amounts to
£1 086m and has been shown as an excepttonal item in the profit and loss account on page 27

11 Fixed asset investments

Loans to Group
undertakings
£000

At 1 Apnl 2010 and 31 March 2011

59,468
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12 Debtors 2011 2010

£000 £000
Trade debtors 1,878 1,912
Amounts owed by Group companies 28 23
Prepayments and accrued income 2,420 2,711
Other debtors 372 229

4,698 4,935

All of the above amounts fall due within one year

As at 31 March 2011, trade debtors had a carrying value of £4 126m (2010 - £4 100m) before provision for bad debt Trade debtors in arrears
are provided for n full, but only an element of current debt s provided for The amount of the provision was £2 248m as at 31 March 2011
(2010 - £2 188m)

The ageing of these debtors was as follows

2011 2010
£000 £000
Up to 12 months 2,006 2,182
Over 12 months 2120 1,918
4,126 4,100

The debtors provided for are mainly in respect of water charges for household customers where expenence In the water industry has shown
over time that it 1s hkely that there will be difficuthes in recovering the water charges for the periods concerned

Movements on the provision for bad debt are as follows

2011 2010
£000 £000
At 1 Apnl 2010 2,188 2,042
Prowision for bad debt required in the year 519 630
Debt written off in the year as uncollectable (459) (484)
At 31 March 2011 2,248 2,188

The other classes within debtors do not contain balances that may be irrecoverable The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the reporting date 15
the fair value of each class of debtor mentioned above The Company does not hold any collateral as securnty

13 Current asset invesiments
Unlisted investments £4,000 (2010 - £4,000)
14 Cash at bank and i hand

0f the total amount shown of £1 746m, £1 591m (2010 - £1 518m) 1s held specihically for the payment of the next half yearly loan interest
charges

15 Credilors amounts falling due within one year 2011 2010
£000 £000

{restated)

3% Perpetual debenture stock 60 60
3%4% Perpetual debenture stock . 185 . 185
4% Perpetual debenture stock 39 39
Bank loan 4,500 6,000
Payments received on account ~ i 2,060 1,502
Trade crediiors 1,132 1,050
Amounts owed to Group companies 1,635 2,078
Corporation tax A 189 897
Social secunty and other taxation 211 208
Other creditors ) _ 1,949 3,083
Accruals o ] ) i ) 418 422
Water rates i advance 4,865 5177
17,243 20,702

The £4 5m bank loan 1s part of a three year £10m working capital facility, which 1s secured upon the assets of the Company and bears interest
at London Interbank rates
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16 Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year 201 2010
£000 £000
Due within one to two years
Payments received on account 439 -
Due within twa to five years
Payments rieceived on account 548 -
In five years or more
Bank ipan 85,306 81,416
Less deferred arrangement costs 1,223 1,280
84,083 80,136
85,070 80,136

The thirty year £66 5m index-Iinked loan was 1ssued on 26 June 2002, 1s repayable on 30 September 2032, and 1s secured upon the assets of
the Company The capital value of the loan is adjusted by the change in the Retall Prices Index from year to year The fees associated with the
Inan 1ssue of £1 722m are amortised over the life of the loan The amount owing on the loan 15 stated net of the unamortised 1ssue fees

The loan interest 1s caleutated by adjusting the value of the loan by the Retall Prices Index and then charging interest on this amount at 3 635%
per annum

17 Prowvisions for hiabilities 2011 2010
£000 £000

Deferred taxation

At 1 Apni 2010 10,272 9,131

Provided dunng the year in profit and loss account 147 1,144

At 31 March 2011 10,419 10,272

The total deferred tax balance before the effect of discounting 13 £11 345m (2010 - £11 261m )} The amount prowvided for deferred taxation
represents timing differences caused by the excess of tax allowances over depreciation

2011 2010

£000 £000
Deterred tax excluding that relating to pension asset
Accelerated capital allowances 10,419 10,272
Pension asset (note 28) 7,155 3.801
Total provision for deferred tax 18,174 14,073
At 1 Apnl 2010 14,073 13,867
Deferred tax charge n profit and loss account (note 8) ) (149) 944
Deferred tax charged to the statement of total recognised gans and losses 4,250 (738)
At 31 March 2011 18,174 14,073

A reduction in the UK corporation tax rate from 28% to 27% with effect from 1 Apnl 2011 was enacted dunng the penod As a consequence the
deferred tax charge tncludes a decrease in the deferred tax hability of €0 367m The recent announcement to further reduce the rate to 26% with
effect from 1 Apnd 2011 has not been enacted at the balance sheet date therefore has not been taken nto account

In additon to the reduction in the rates of corporation tax mentioned above, the UK Government has announced its intention to further reduce the
rate of corporation tax to 23% by 2014 If this reduction to 23% had been enacted by 31 March 2011 the deferred tax liabiity would have been
reduced by a further €1 544m to £8 875m

The future tax charges will also be affected by the Government’s intention to reduce the main rate of caprtal allowances from 20% to 18% with
effect from 1 Apni 2012, together with a reduction i the specialflong life pool rate from 10% to 8% As none of these changes had been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date, no adjustment 1s recognised in these financial statements

If all the changes had been enacted at the balance sheet date the deferred tax habilty of £10 419m (see note 17) would have been reduced by
£1 487m to £8 932m and the deferred tax iabilty relating to the pension asset of £7 755m (see note 28) would have been reduced by £1 148m
to £6 607m The reduction in the deferred tax habiiity would have been dealt with in the profit and loss account The reduction in the deferred tax
hability relating to the pension asset would have been dealt with in the statement of total recogmised gains and losses The reductions in deferred
tax are expected to be implemented over the penod to 2014 in line with legislative changes

No provision has been made for deferred tax on gains recognised on the sa'e of properties where potentially taxable gains have been rolled over
into replacement assets Such tax would become payable only if the property were sold without it being possible to clam rollover relief The total
amount unprovided for 1s £0 669m (2010 - £0 694m ) At present it 1S not envisaged that any tax will become payable in the fereseeable future
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18 Financeal instruments

The Financial Review on page 8 prowides an explanation of the objectives and policies for holding financial instruments The numencal
disclosures in thus note deal with financial assets and liabikbes Short term debtors and creditors have been excluded from all disclosures The
fair value of all financial instruments 1s not matenally different to the book value

Financial assets

The financial assets of the Company are detalled below The fixed asset investment earns interest based on London Interbank rates Cash
at bank and in hand includes a sterking cash deposit of £1 590m , which 1s placed on the money market at a six monthly rate and 1s held
specrfically for the payment of the next half yearly loan interest charges The remamning cash balances an bank accounts receive interest at
commercial rates

Financial hahthhes

The Company has no foreign currency contracts The mterest rate profile of its financial habiles at 31 March 2011 15 detailed below

Sterling 2011 2010
£000 £000
Assels
Fixed asset investment 59,468 59,468
Current asset investments 4 4
Gash at bank and 1n hand 1,746 1,931
61,218 61,403
Sterling Fixed Fixed Floating Fleating
Rate Rate Rate Rate Total Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Liabilities
Bank loans and overdraft 84,083 80,136 4,500 6,000 88,583 86,136
Debenture stock 284 284 - - 284 284
84,367 80,420 4,500 6,000 88,867 86,420
Fixed rate Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average  Average Period Average Period
Interest Interest for which for which
Rate Rate Rate 15 Fixed Rate 15 Fixed
% % Years Years
2011 2010 2011 2010
Sterling 36 36 21 22

Interest on the floating rate financial lability 1s based on London Interbank rates

The maturity profile of the Company’s financia! liabiities at 31 March 2011 is detalled below

2011 2010
£000 £000
In one year or less 4,784 6,284
In more than five years 84,083 80,136
88.867 86,420
The Company had undrawn committed borrowing faciliies at 31 March 2011, in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met, as
follows
2011 2010
£000 £000
Expinng n one year or less . - _ 9,000
Expining between one and two years - -
Expinng in more than two years 9,500 2,000
9,500 11,000

The carrying amounts of the financia! assets and liabiliies shown above approximate their fair value
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19 Called up share capital 2011 2010
£000 £000

Authonsed

Equity

6,000,000 Ordinary Shares of 10p each 600 600

10,500,000 ‘A’ Ordinary Shares of 10p each 1,050 1,050
1,650 1,650

Non-equity

3,250,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of £1 each 3,250 3,250
4,800 4,900

Allotted, called up and fully pard

Equity

4,265,177 Ordinary Shares of 10p each 427 427

6,509,162 ‘A Ordinary Shares of 10p each 651 651
1,078 1,078

The Ordinary and ‘A" Ordinary Shareholders are entitled to recerve dividends pan passu according to the amount paid up or credited as paid up

on their shares The Ordinary Shares are the only class of share to carry voting nghts

In a distnbution on the winding up of the Company, the Ordinary and ‘A’ Ordinary Shareholders are entitied to share the balance of any surplus

assets pan passu according to the amount paid up or credited as paid up on their shares

20 Reserves Share Capial Profit
Premium Redemption and Loss

£000 £000 £000

At 1 Apnl 2010, as previously reported 1,639 3,250 55,873
Prior year adjustment - capital works department - - 389
At 1 Apnl 2010, restated 1,639 3,250 56,262
Profit for the financial year - - 688
Dividends - - (2,922)
Actuanal gain on pension scheme - 14,904
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension scheme - (4,024)
Effect of change to corporation tax rate on pension asset - - (226)
At 31 March 2011 1,539 3,250 64,682
21 Reconcihiation of movements 1n shareholders’ funds 2011 2010
£000 £000

] (restated)

Profit for the financial year 688 5,811
Dividends (2,922) {4,663)
(2,234) 1,148

Actuanal gain/{loss) on pension scheme 14,904 (2,636)
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension scheme (4,024) 738
Effect of change to corporation tax rate on pension asset (226) -
Net addihon/{reduction) to shareholders’ funds 8,420 {750)
Opening shareholders’ funds 62,129 62,879
Closing shareholders’ funds 70,549 62,129
22 Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities 2011 2010
£000 £000

(restated)

Operahng profit _ 6,108 8,856
Notional pension costs _ 1,652 1,419
Depreciation charge o 8,208 7,900
Loss on disposal of asset o - 7
Decrease/(increase) in stocks 33 (138)
Decrease/(increase) in debtors _ o 238 (1,046)
Increase in creditors 1,267 185
Net cash inflow from operating activities 17,556 17,153
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23 Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt 2011 2010
£000 £000
(Decrease) m cash in the year (260) (728)
Cash outflow from increase n hquid resources 75 55
Cash outflow/(inflow) from decrease/(increase) n debt 1,500 (2.000)
Change in net debt resulting from cash flows 1,315 (2.673)
Non cash movement (3,947) 1,127
Movement in net debt in the year {2,632) (1,546)
Net debt at 1 April 2010 {84,485) {82,939)
Net debt at 31 March 2011 (87,117) {84,485)
The Company includes as hquid resources term deposits of less than one year and current asset equity investments
24 Analysis of changes n net debt At Cash Non cash Al
1 Apnl 2010 Flow Movements 31 March 2011
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cash at bank and 1n hand 416 (260) - 156
Debt falling due within one year (6,284) 1,500 - {4,784)
Debt falling due after one year (80,136) - (3.947) {84,083)
(86,420) 1,500 (3,947) {88,867)
Short term deposits 1,515 75 - 1,590
Current asset equity investments 4 - - 4
1,519 75 - 1,594
(84,485) 1,315 (3,947) (87,117)
The non cash movement relates to the annual indexation of the lpan and the amoriisation of the 1ssue fees
25 Capital commitments 2011 2010
£000 £000
Contracted for but not provided in these financial statements 1,651 1,054

The Company has a further commitment under operating leases relating to computer hardware and associated software of £0 338m per annum
{2010 - £0 339m ) which expire as set out below

2011 2010
£000 £000
Within two to five years 339 339

26 Contingent habihities

There were no reportable contingent habilities at 31 March 2011 or at 31 March 2010

27 Ultimate parent underiaking

Portsmouth Water Limited 15 a wholly-owned subsidiary of Portsmouth Water Hokdings Limted and has, therefore, taken advantage of the
exemption under FRS 8 Related Party Disclosures not to provide mformation on related party transactions with other undertakings within the

Group The uttmate parent undertaking 15 South Downs Capital Limeted and 1s the largest and smallest company for which Group accounts are
prepared Copies of these accounts can be obtained on request from the Regestered Office
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28 Pensions

Portsmouth Water Limited 1 the pnncipal employer and its parent company, Brockhampton Holdings Limited, 1s the participating employer in
the Brockhampton Pension Scheme This scheme provides defined benefits based pnmanly on final pensionable earnings The assets of the
scheme are held in a separate trustee administered fund

In July 2010 the Government announced 1S ntention that future statutory mimimum pension indexation would be measured by the Consumer
Prices Index, rather than the Retall Pnces Index This has been reflected in the Company’s assumptions and a gain of £9 94m has been
recogmsed as a result, and 1s included in actuanal gains on assumptions in the figures below

The formal actuanal valuation as at 31 March 2008 was updated to the accounting date by an independent qualihed actuary in accordance with
FRS 17 As required by FRS 17, the value of the defined benefit iabilities has been measured using the projected und method

The estmated Company contnbutions expected to be paid to the Scheme for the year commencing 1 Apnl 201115 £0 7m (2010 actual £0 7m)

The key FRS 17 assumptions used for the scheme were as follows

2011 2010 2009

% per annum % per annum % per annum

RPI inflation 35 37 32
CPl inflation 28 n/a nfa
Discount rate 55 55 69
Pension Increases 28 37 32
Salary growth 575 595 545

On the basis of the assumptions used for fife expectancy, a male pensicner currently aged 60 would be expected to live for a further 28 9 years
(2010 - 28 7 years) Allowance i1s made for future improvements in Iife expectancy

The fair value of assets in the scheme, a breakdown of the assets into the main asset classes, the present value of the FRS 17 liabilities and the
surplus of assets over the FRS 17 habithies (which equals the grass pension asset) are set out below

20m 2011 2010 2010 2009 2009

Expecied Farr Expected Far Expected Fair

Return % Value Return % Value Return % Value

per annum £000 per annum £000 per annum £000

Equities 76 17,654 78 74,538 80 53,382
Bonds 41 40,353 43 37,784 42 29,017
Other 21 2,030 20 1,521 19 4,325
63 120,037 66 113,843 64 86,724

The total expected return on assets 1s denved by taking the weighted average of the tong-term expected return on each of the asset classes

201 2010

£000 £000
Total fair value of scheme assets 120,037 113,843
FRS 17 value of scheme habilibes 91,313 100,268
Gross pension asset 28,724 13,575
Related deferred tax itability 7,155 3,801
Net pension asset 20,969 9,774

Under FRS 17, the scheme 15 represented on the balance sheet at 31 March 2011 as an asset of £28 724m (2010 - £13 575m), which amounis
to £20 969m net of deferred tax (2010 - £9 774m)

The Company remained on a contnbution haliday until 31 March 2010 and then began paying contnbutions on 1 Apnl 2010 at a rate of 12 4% of
earnings Members pay contnbutions at a rate of 5% of earmings
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The FRS 17 value of scheme llabiliies moved over the penod as follows 2011 2010

£000 £000
Opening scheme hiabilities 100,268 69,808
Employer’s part of current service cost 2,345 1,419
Interest cost 5,495 4,762
Contnbutions by scheme participants 279 284
Benefits paid (3,351) (3,306)
Actuanal (gan)/loss (13,723) 27,301
Closing scheme liabiliies 91,313 100,268
The FRS 17 vaiue of scheme assets moved over the penod as follows

2011 2010

£000 £000
Cpening fair value of scheme assets 113,843 86,724
Expected return on assets 7.392 5,476
Contnbutions by scheme participants 279 284
Contnbutions by the Company 693 -
Benefits paid (3,351) (3,306}
Actuanal gain 1,181 24,665
Closing fair value of schemne assets 120,037 113,843
The following amounts have been mcluded within operating profit under FRS 17

2011 2010

£000 £000
Current service cost (employer’s part only) 2,345 1,419
Past service cost - -
Total operating charge 2,345 1,419
The following amounts have been mcluded as other finance income under FRS 17

2011 2010

£000 £000
Expected return on pension scheme assets 7,392 5,476
Interest on post retirement labilties (5,495) (4,762)
Net return 1,897 714
Total {expense) recogmised in the profit and loss account (448) (705)
The following amounts have been recognised within the statement of total recogmised gains and losses (STRGL) under FRS 17

2011 2010

£000 £000
Actual return less expected return on scheme assets 1,181 24,665
Expenence gams ansing on scheme habilities - -
Gain/(less) due to changes in assumptions underlying the FRS 17 value of scheme liahilities 13,723 (27,301}
Actuanal gan/{loss) recognised in the STRGL 14,904 (2,636)
The actual return on plan assets was a gain of £8 573m wn the year to 31 March 2011 (2010 - gan of £30 141m)
The history of expenence gains and losses 1S

20m 2010 2009 2008 2007

Present value of scherme habilities (E000) (N.,313) {100,268} (69,808) (77.718) (86,882)
Total far valug of scheme assets (£000} 120,037 113,843 86,724 107,696 108,711
Surplus (£000) 28,724 13,575 16,916 29,978 21,829
Actual return less expected return on scheme assets {£000) 1,181 24,665 (25,132) (5,382) (535)
Percentage of scheme’s assets 1% 22% (29)% (5)% 0%
Expenence gains ansing on scheme’s liabifies (£000) - - 4,722 - -
Percentage of the FRS 17 value of the scheme’s liabilihes 0% 0% 7% 0% 0%
Total amount recogmised in the STRGL (£000) 14,904 (2,636) (13,020) 7,602 (519)
Percentage of the FRS 17 value of the scheme’s liabilities 16% 3% 19% 10% 0%

The cumulative amount recogmised in the STRGL as at 31 March 2011 was a loss of £7 729m (2010 - loss of £22 633m)

The Accounting Standards Board have published guidance relating to best practice for disclosure of pensions information The Gompany have

decided not to follow the guidance at this tme
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NOTICE OF MEETING

Notice 1s hereby given that the Annua! General Meeting of Portsmouth Water Limried will be held at the Company's Reqistered Office, PO Box 8,
West Street, Havant, Hants, at 11 00 am on Thursday, the 28th day of July 2011, on the following business

1 To recewve and consider the Directors’ Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2011 and the Audrtors’ Report thereon
2 Tore-electMr A R Neve a Director of the Company
3 Tore-elect Mr R L Sullivan a Director of the Company

4 To reappont Saffery Champness as Company Auditors and to authonse the Directors to fix their remuneration

Registered Otfice

POBox 8

West Street Havant By order of the Board
Hants P09 1LG C Hardyman ACIS
27 May 2011 Secretary
Notes

1) Debenture holders are reminded that the holding of debenture stock does not entitle them to attend or vote at the meeting

n) Shareholders are reminded that no voting nghts attach to the ‘A’ Ordinary Shares ‘A" Ordinary Shareholders are not entitled to attend the
meeting

ury A proxy formis enclosed for Shareholders entitled to vote at the meeting

) To be valid proxies must reach the Company’'s Registered Office not [ater than forty-eight hours before the time fxed for the mesting
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APPENDIX - KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

KPI - 1 2011 2010
a) Gearing - Debht/RCV £000 £000
(1 Debt
Bank loan (note 16) 85,306 81,416
Bank loan (note 15) 4,500 6,000
Debenture stock (note 15) 284 284
Cash at bank and in hand {1,746) (1.931)
88,344 85,769

For the purposes of this ratio, debt excludes the deferred arrangement costs of £1 223m (note 16} and the current asset investment of £0 004m

(note 13}
() Regulatory Capital Value (RCV)

Value established by Ofwat in Final Determunation in 2009

One of the elements considered by Otwat in assessing revenues required by the Company s a return on the capital investment :n the business
The value of the capital base of each company for the purposes of setting pnce limts 1s the RCV The RCV 1s widely used by the investment
community as a proxy for the market value of the regulated busmess For Portsmouth Water the RCV 1s a key element of its bond covenants

201 2010

£000 £000
Regulatory capital value indexed to 31 March 115,197 111,417
(m) Gearing - DebyRCV ratio (1)) — () 76 7% 770%
b) Cash interest cover
This ratio represents the number of times cashflow of the business covers interest payments
(1) Cashilow before interest paid 15 denved from the cashflow statement on page 29 and 1s calculated as follows

2011 2010

£000 £000

{restated)

Net cash flow from operating actwities 17,556 17,153
Interest receved, excluding amounts for inte-company loan 17 23
Taxation, excluding payments for group relief (858) (965)
Capital expenditure (9,728) (12,915)
(Repayment of [pans)/new borrowings (1,500) 2,000

5,487 5,296
() interest paid 3,283 3,071
() Cash interest cover ratio {) — () 167 172

KPl - 2 Customer Service Measures

Indicators are based on information supphed to Ofwat and confirmed in the Ofwat publication ‘Levels of Service for the Water Industry in

England and Wales Report’

KPI - 3 Water Quahty

This indicator 15 based on fiigures reported to the DWI

KPI - 4 Efficiency

The results for this indicator are provided by Ofwat in its pubhication “Water and Sewerage Unit Costs and Etficiency’

KPl - 5 Leakage

This indicater i1 based on figures supplied to Ofwat and confirmed in s report ‘Secunty of Supply, Leakage and the Efficient Use of Water' The

figures for 2010/11 have been supphed to Ofwat, but will rot be confirmed in the Gfwat document until later 1n 2011




